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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limlited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 -

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the )
charitable company for the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The annual reporl serves the purposes

of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Bellevue Place Education Trust (the trust) operates seven primary schools across London and Maidenhead.
_The schools currently have a combined capacity of 1,286 puplls, with a pupil a roll of 1,111 pupils in the school
census on 17 May 2018, As new free schools, all seven will grow to a combined pupil capacity of 2,510. :

Bellevue Place Education Trust was incomorafed on 20 February 2012 as an acédemy trust and a combany
limited by guarantee, with the purpose of establishing, maintaining and developing outstanding schools, -

The trust is a joint venture between twa organisations who are experts in, and passionate about, providing high
quality education provision. These fwo organisations bring together the very best of the fee-paying Independent
sector — Bellevue Education Ltd — experienced in running a family of 17 independent schools in the UK,
Switzerland and Qatar; with a highly-regarded education consultancy — Place Group — with experience in setting
up hew schools and converting academies, along with lmplementmg strategies that ensure value for money and

procurement compliance for schools and colleges.

Structure, governance and management

MEMBERS® LIABILITY

‘Each member of the charltable comp_ahy undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member; or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceedmg £10, for the debts and Ilabllmes conlracted before they ceased-to be

a member.

TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

In line with normal commercial practice, Bellevue Place Education Trust insures its Trustees against errors,
negligent acts or omissions relating to their work for the Bellevue Place Education Trust for up to £10m on any

single claim.

METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELEGTION OF TRUSTEES

Over the penod of these fi nancnal statements, Bellevue Place Educatlon Trust has recrmted two new trustees to.
. the BPET Board. '

Members and frustees agreed that parent trustees would be a strong addition to the Board, as the trust enters
. its'sixth year of operation. Trustees approached the two elected parent governors at each of the seven schools

as to whether they would be interested in becommg a parent trustee,

Five parents expressed an interest and a skills based approach was taken to choose the two strongest
nominations who were elected to the Board on 19 December 2017. The two parents will enrich the Board with a
second chartered accountant and finance expettise along with further marketing expertise, with pupil roll
continuing to be a significant risk and area for continued improvement across the frust. ,

fn addition, the parent trustees have been élected parent govemors for four and two years respectively and
demonstrated a deep commitment to the vision and values of the trust. '
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUGATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

With nine trustees on the Board, it is not antrcrpated any new trustees wrll be appomted unless a vacancy
occurs X

: POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

The procedure adopted for the rnductron and tralnmg of Trustees has included the followrng

A verbal and written overview of the trust — information on srze locatron phase, type of schools;

Core Information and data on the individual academies along with any Ofsted reports

"Performance Reports and a sample prospectus from a school

A verbal and written summary of the trust's governance structure how |t works, what new
members/trustees can expsct by way of commitment, induction and training;

BPET Governance Policy and copy of minutes of board meetings along with recent board packs

A verbal presentation of the BPET 3 Year Strategy Plan .

Key policies, like Conflict of Interest, Whistleblowing Policy and Safeguardrng Policy

A verbal session on the BPET Scheme of Delegation followed by associated reading material

EFA and DfE documentation, i.e. the Academies Financial Handbook and Governance Handbook

~Visits to BPET Schools .

‘e e e e

e e ‘s & o o

: Thrs took place for our two new parent trustees on 22 February 2018.. Trustees also visit a number of schools
to meet the Headteachers and teachers along with a tour to witness pupils learning. New trustees also met the
Central Trust Team. Following this induction, future tralning needs for trustees will be discussed and identified.

N

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The trustees set the strategic policy of the trust and approve the BPET 3 Year Strategic Plan whrch sets ouf the
long-term direction of the trust and trustees monitor the progress of the plan at every BPET Board meeting.
The board also-sets annual budgets and take major declsrons about the trust, lncludmg any proposed growth of -

schools and senior staff appaintments.

The board annually approves the BPET Scheme of Delegation which sets out the responsrbrlmes that are
retained by the board, or delegated to the accounting officer (Chief Executive), Local Governrng Body,
Committees of the. l_ocal Governing Body and the Headteacher. - The majority of responsibility is delegated to
. the-Lacal Governing Body that includes approving and monitoring the Schoo! Development Plan, recommending-

the proposed budget for the academic year to the board and approving all spend bélow £40,000 for the school.
The Headteacher supports the Local Governing Body in this role and is also.delegated the fesponsibility to
appoint all staff up to and mcludmg the Depuly Headteacher and conductmg the performance management for

the staff,

The frust operates an autonomy model and has delegated a.large amount of responsrbrllty to the Local
Governing Body, except some areas, for example, the appointment of the Headteacher for each-school and the
performance management of the Headteacher, which. has been delegated to the chief executive. This function
is undertaken with a representatlve from the school improvement contract and the chair of governors.

The day to day management responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executrve and for each mdlvrdual
school, this is delegated to the Headteacher. .

As part of the governance review in 2016/17, conducted by the National Governance Assoclation, this structure .
is changing for 2018/19 at local governance level. A detailed consultation took place in the spring term- 2018.
The BPET Board took the decision on 1 May 2018 to dissolve Local Governing Badies and create Local
Advisory Boards, with a more focussed function to support and challenge education provision to meet the needs

_ofthe local community.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

" TRUSTEES’ REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Responsibifity for finances, stafﬂng, safeguardmg, Health & Safety, risk and burfdmgs has been delegated to the
Chief Executive and managed by the Central Trust Team. This new structure will remove a great deal of
duplication in the roles, allow the local adviser role to be manageable and professionalise some key areas of the

schoal’s operation.

: ‘The ma;onty of ex:stmg governors have transferred into the new advisory role with further parents and
commumty members being recrulted for a number of the schools o

PAY POLlCY FOR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Bellevue Place Education Trust's Pay Polisy is in line with the naﬂonal pay and condmon salary scales and all
staff are appointed in line with these and leaders are appointed against the leadership scales points for their
school size (when full). School staff are performance managed against the BPET Performance Management
" "Policy with a separate Headteachers Performance Management Policy. The L.ocal Governing Body review and
approve all school based proposed pay awards up to and including the Deputy Headteacher .

Central Trust staff are appointed to a spot salary following analysis of competitive equsvalent roles and lhey also
follow the Central Trust Tearn Performance Management Policy. The board has establishéd a Remuneration
Committee.to approve any annual pay award of the Chxef Executive, Headteachers and the Central Trust Team.

" All ‘Performance Management Policies offer -performance related pay lncentlves to staff recognlsmg .’
. achlevements in thelr role against clear and aspirational targets . '

 TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

- Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant umon ofﬂctals during the year
Full-time equwalent employee number .

- Percentage of time spent on facmty time

Percentage of time Number of
. ‘ employees
0% ‘ -
- 1%-50% -
51%-99% . - -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time. 3
Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill . - ,
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facmty time - %
Paid trade unlon actwmes
"Time spent on paid trade unlon activities as a percentage of total paxd. , - %

facility time hours
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BELLEVUEPLACE EDUCATION TRUST
- (A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, lNCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

Bellevue Place Education Trust works alongside our sponsor organisations, to bring the expertise and skills for _
the benefit of the schools within the Trust and support the delivery of its vislon. The orgamsataons that contmue

to support the Trust are:

+ . Bellevue Education, which operates 17 highly successful independent schools in the UK, Switzerland and
Qatar that shares its vision of challenging pupils whilst installing creativity of thought and independent |
eamning. Bellevue Education were successful in a competitive tendering process to provide the School
Improvement services to the trust from 2016/17 for three years, with the option to extend the contract
further. The contract is a key part of the BPET Schoo!l Improvement Strategy and supports the BPET
vision. The contract provides each school with five visits throughout the academic year.” The elements of
this review provides the trust with an overview of the performance of the schaols, as well as supporting
Heads and teachers to improve, linked to the vision of the trust. As part of this contract, Bellevue
‘Education provides updated policies annually and supports the Headteachers performance management
process. The cost to the trust for Schoo! Improvement Services amounted to £74,436 in 2017/18,-across
the seven schools in the trust. In line with the Academ|es Financial Handbook, these services were

prowded ‘at cost',

'As we move into 2018/1 9, thisis the last year of the contract and we have agread w:th Bellevue
Education not to trigger the optiohal extensions to the contract. The BPET Board will therefore be
reconsidering plans for delivering the BPET School Improvement Sfrategy in 2019/20 and beyond.

. School's Buying Club (SBC), have been compliantly procured by the trust to be the procurement provider -
fordarge scale contracts across the trust. They provide category specific procurement expertlse to
enable trust-wide contracts to be put in place for high value contracts.

-~

SBC were procured to be the preferred procurement partner for the trust. SBC's chargir'lg model means
that neither the schools or trust incur a direct fee for the procurement and contract management services
- —the successful supplier is charged between .75% and 5% of the contract fee, No coniracts have been
procured by SBC in 2017/18 for BPET and we have no current contract plans for 2018/19. SBC has
rented the use of a room at Rutherford House School, set against local market rates, which means the |
trust is reporting a small income from SBC of £6,080 in 2017/18. This arrangement ceased in June

2018, as the school is expandmg into this space in 201 8/19

+ - Schoot Busmess Service (SBS) provides support services and products to the education sector School
Business Service is a related: party to Bellevue Place Educatlon Tlust as SBS has a 35% share in Place

. Group.

.SBS provides the frust cloud hosting service for the Civica financial system. This contract was tendered -
in 2015116 for a three-year contract, due to cease in August 2018. SBS were the preferred supplier;
providing a high quality service at the most competitive rate. The cost to the trust for these financial

- services amounted to £10,114 in 2017/18. All SBS sevices are provided ‘at cost, in line W|th the

‘Academies Financial Handbook

School Business Services (SBS) are included in our accounts as a related paity, as SBS owned a 35%
- share in Place Group Consuilting Ltd. This is no longer the case and subsequently they are no longer a
related party of Bellevue Place Education Trust. This Is the last year they will be quoted in our accounts.

- The total expenditure through Related Party Transactlons in 2017/1 8 was F82 780, compared to 2016/17 when
the equivalent cost was also £82,780. _
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

" OBJECTS AND AIMS

To advance for the public benefit education in.the United Kingdom by establishing, maintaining, managing and
developing schoals offering a broad and bhalanced curriculum. All Bellevue Place Education Trust schools are

focused to dehver high quality education provision.
Our Vision and Ethos ~ Learn. Enjoy. Succeed.

Three words that mean the world to us. Three words that have been with us from the day we formed Bellevue
Place Education Trust (BPET). Three words that govern ali that we do.

BPET’s vision is to run autonomous schoals, with support for back office support, with freedom over the
educational delivery, within the vislon of the trust. The aspiration is that to maintain -schools where academic
excellence is just one aspect of an outstanding education. With a rich extended curriculum, building emotional
intelligence in pupils, through the learning experience, typically nurtured from pupils’ interest of ideas.

Our parents can expect excellence, both in how we teach and how we nurture their child. We foster a positive
attitude to life, encouraging a 'be interested and be interesting’ attitude by providing a rich leaming environment
full of arts, drama sport, music and as well as, of course, academic rigor.

BPET children are happy, confident, successful ‘all-rounders’ who expect to win and achieve in an inclusive
“sefting where children, parents and school staff work together to provide the best. Our commitment is that we,
will teach children to learn, enjoy and succeed both in their school career and beyond

BPET staff are the thing that sels us apart and are central to delivering the vision of the trust. We are committed
to recruiting the best staff, providing attractive development and- rétention packages and ensuring that every
member of staff receives focused training. Teachers are all leaders and will be developed so their career is
supported to help them to-achieve their aspirations. Our goal is that at least half of our future senior leaders of
BPET schools will come from current BPET staff .

OBJECTIVES STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Since September 2013 Bellevue Place Education Trust opened seven new Free Schools across London and
Maidenhead. Five of the seven are situated in their permanent accommodation, which is elther new or

refurbished.

The focus for 2017/18 was to support four schools through their first OfSTED inspection, with Watling Park,
Kilburn Grange and Halley House Schools judged as providing a Good education and Deer Park School was
judged as providing an Outstanding provision in all areas. . Therefore, all seven BPET schoo[s are now judged

by OfSTED as being Good or better within three years of opening.

_Following an external review of governance across the trust in 2016/17, conducted by the National Governance
Association, the BPET Board have consulted with key stalkeholders in Spring 2018 on the proposal to remove
Local Governing Bodies and replace them with Local Advisory Boards. The aims of this change is to remove
- duplication with the support offered by the Central Trust Team and allow for the local governance arrangement’
for each school to focus on the curriculum offer and educatlon delivery of each school meenng the needs of the

communily they serve.

Nine changes were made to the proposal following the consultation and th'e revised proposal was appnoﬁed by
the BPET Board on 1 May 2018. Changes to, policies and the BPET Scheme of Delegation were implemented
ln the Summer term, with the new governance structure ready to be implemented from 1 September-2018.

Further strategic drives have. been the development of Learning Reviews for each school, as part of the School -
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

 TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued) .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

lmprovement Review Cycle in 2017/18. These are led by a BPET Headteacher, with the support of a Bellevue
- Consultant.- The review has been really well received by the school staff and Heads, and these- will continue in
2018/19, with the addition of a Deputy/Assistant Head from each school.

All BPET schools continue to-drive forward with the Thinking Schools approach Trustees have set a target for
all schools to become accredited Thinking Schools over the next three to four years and have invested in the
training of staff to achieve this through the BPET Enrichment Fund.

In 2017/18 the second strand of Thinking Schools — using Philosophy for Children (P4C) in all BPET schools —~

had training provided for Headteachers and Thinking Schools leads. Training in early March 2018 was

- delivered by the excellent Roger Sultcliffe, former president of Sapphire, who oversees the\P4C programme.
-This is now being rolled out through our schools, with the alm of one hour of phllosophy a week within the

schools.

Throughout thé 2017/18 academic year, the trust has continued to focus on its current schools, though trustees
have begun to consider a growth plan for the trust. With the very strong outcomes in July 2018 and the positive
OfSTED outcomes, this growth plan will begin to being implemented in 2018/19. :

"PUBLIC BENEFIT

The trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty contained in the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duty.. They
..have referred to this guidance when re\newmg the trust's aims and objectives and in plannlng its future

actlvmes
_Strategic report

" Achievements and Performance

Of. the seven new schools we maintain, all have received an OfSTED inspection, with three schools;being
judged as providing a Good education (Watling, Kitburn and Halley House); two schools-were judged as Good
with outstanding features (Rutherford House and Whitehall Park) and two are judged to be Outstanding in all -

areas (Deer Park and Braywick Court). -

In terms of pupil achlevement, in July 2018,'84% of BPET pupils achieved a Good Level of Development (above
2017 national of 69%) and 89% of pupils passed the phonics screening in Year 1 (above 2017 national of 81%).
Both Rutherford House School and Whitehall Park School achieved what Deer Parlc Schoot did in 2017, with
95% of pupils passmg the Phonic check. An excellent achievement by the schoo! _

All schoals had Year 2 pupils reaching the end of Key Stage One for the fll’st time. rhe table on the next page
sets out the pupil achievement at the end of the academic year. _

2018] 5017] National Average (i 2017)
84% K 86% 76%

at or above age related

expectation in Reading
at or above age related - TT% 78% ' 68%
expectations in Writing | ' :

81%| . . 86% 75%

“{at or above age related
ex ectaﬁons in'maths

.Anothe} year of strong results has been achieved by our pupils rece}vmg a wider cumculum offer from the
schools in line with our vision and enhanced by a rich extra curriculum offer,
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

~ Parental support for our schools is also very h|gh with another year of excellent parental survey results in May
2018, for the provlslon offered by the BPET schools.. . .

Below is the combined total of the parental responses:
. 97% of parents and carers strongly agree or agree that their child enjoys coming to schoof
* 93% ranked their-response as highly Iikely or likely to recommend a Bellevue Place Education Trust

School to their friends

. 95% of parents and carers strongly agree or agree that their school s values and attltudes have a posmve
effect on their child
. 94% of parents and carers strongly agree or agree that their school develops their child's mdependence
‘and responsibility .
"o 91% of parents and carers-are satisfied with the leadersh:p and management of their school

. The schools also offer a vast number of before and after school clubs with 167 clubs a week in the surmmer
term in 2018. Parents and pupils appreciate this rich offer, with 72% of our 1,120 pupils attending at Ieast one
club a week. As one pupil put it, “the clubs really enrich my leamlng" ' .

Within this financial year, the trust educated 1,120 pupils across the seven schools employmg 184 staff with an
" overall turnover of £8.8m, . R _ ,

Key Performance Indicators

- Trustees monitor the performance of the frust through Key Performance Indicators, which have been
categorised in the following headings: Pupil achisvement; OfSTED outcome, pupil numbers, staff recru:tment
and retention, further deveIop the Central Trust Team and future growth. :

N

Pupil Attainment '
As set out above, across the seven schools in 2018 84% of reception aged puplls made a Good Level of

Development, which is well above the national average of 71% in 2017. The graph overleaf shows how all the
schools performed individually, As ¢an be seen, all school are performing well above the national average. .

N n




BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST L
(A company limited by guarantee) :

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) - L N -
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 T .

% of Reception pupiis'achie'ving a Good Level of Developmeant in 2018

90%

80%

705

3% - B

- Z0%

0%

Halley House -

- o ——— e emee e A e s

Rutherfard - Braywick Whitehall _ Kilburn®
House- Court Park Grange

[ . - .
Deer Park  Watling Park

g GLD 2017 B GLD 2018 —= National Average

'lﬁ Year 1, pupils underiook the Pho'n'ic check and in 2017/18, 89% of pupils were 'successful in attaining the
expected level across the trust - well above the 81% national average In 2017. ‘ o
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
. (A company limited by guarantee) .

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Phonic Check'in Year 1

g i

izl

ﬁ:m ; ?‘

T

Rutherford  Braywick . Whitehall Kitburn 'H,alleyHouse Deer Park  Watling Park " - BPET Average
- House - Cout - . Park ° Grange :

@Phonic Test 2017 & Phonic Test 2018 — National Average

All schools had pupils at the end of _kéy Stage One in' 2017/18 and all are achieving very high outcomes, with
schools performing between 6%-9% above hational average. As can be seen against the BPET, the majority of
schools are performing vety well. ‘ ‘ - - : : _
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BELLEVUE PLAGE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) = -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 .

| - BPET Key Stage One Outcomes in 2017/18
TOD - oo m o e e e e e e e e
"90'.-- ‘
80
o
60
. 50
30
20

10

Kithurn Grange  Halley House

0 i e
Braywick Court -Whitehall Park

‘ Rutherford
House

m'YearZ:-% atAge Rela_ted Expectation or aiiove in reading & Yearé :9 at Age Related Expectation or above in witing
@ Year 2:% at Age Related Expectation or above In maths - — Natjonal Average

OfSTED Outcomes ) ' : 4 : :
- The trust Is performing very well in regards to this performance Indicator. All seven BPET schools being judged
by OfSTED, five schools are’ Good and two are Outstanding. All school received their first OfSTED Inspection
within three years of opening as new schools, with the following outcomes: : ,
. Rutherford House School judged Godd with outstanding features'in July 2015
. Whitehall Park School was judged Good with outstanding features in April 2017 -
. Braywick Court School was judged Outstanding in June 2017 s
. Watling Park School was judged Good in May 2018 ' -
. Kilburn Grange School was judged Good in July 2018
. .Deer Patk School was judged Outstanding in July 2018

_»_ Halley House School was judged Goad in July 2018

Pupil Numbers 2 _ ' e x ' .

A focus has been placed by the trustees to continue to market the schools, supported from the central team,
with an aim in the BPET 3 Year Strategic Plan for all schools to be full with parents choosing the school as their
first choice by September 2019. In 2017/18, fwo schools continued fo be full with. first choices. - Another three
schools were full in their planned admission number 2017/18.. Overall, the schools were 86% full in 2017/18, up

from 85% the previous year. - - ‘

Early indicators show that there are challe'nges for primary schools in London'in 2017/18, with a significant drop
in the demand for school places and the competition from schools will be high. The factors for this are ﬂ)ree
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‘BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCAT]ON TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

fold 1. The birth rate has dropped, 2. The cost of a family home in London Is out of the reach for many families -
and 3. We have seen European families leaving London We continue to be well placed to"attract parents to

"~ -send their chrldren to our. schools

Staff Vacancles & Retention
Attracttng and developing high quality staff is vital to the success of the schools and trust, with 73% of the

income of the trust goihg on staffing. In 2017/18 the Trust employed 184 employees across the frust.
Recrurting and retaining high quality staff has always been a key priority.

Across the seven schools in the {rust; staff tuiover remains low, with a strong focus on. rewardtng staff for .
delivering high standards, through supportive performance management cycles. In addition, we continue to-
offer. all staff high quallty CPD opportunities, to further develop their skills and competences

- Previously some new schools have experienced a hlgher than usual turnover and while we. have lost a small
number of staff, retention rates are high. We also recruited early and filled all teacher vacancies before the end

~ of April for-1 September 2018..

The Central Trust team offering h|gh quality support to all BPET schools
The quality of the support to the schools s evaluated annually through a survey to Headteachers, assesslng the

quahty and looking at how the support structure can be improved.

Overall the response and confidence in the provision of the Central Trust Team which includes the School
Improvement Review Cycle; continues to remain very high: Of the 15 quantitative responses, 87% of the
questions had responses of 80% or above where Heads agreed or strongly agreed and 40% of the responses
having 100% of the responses either agree or strongly agree. The support offered is very well received by our

Headteachers.

In terms of how the Central Team deliver the vislon of the trust .
Question ’ Question -

The review cycle process overall has supported our 80%
self-evaluation, and assisted in identifying prront[es for
.|action within the school

. |The school improvement cycle has complemented the : . ' . 80%
school self-review process : " .
The review process has supported us in consideting - | . 80%

. |the ethos of the trust in terms of the best of
independent and state sector:

I have found the performance management structure ' '80%
{useful in supporting my professional development : '

needs . .

Are you clear on the priorities for the trust, linked with | ' 100% .

" |all pupils to Learn, Enjoy, Succeed?

. Finance support is highly valued, with all but one response being that they strongly agreed that they recelved
effective financial support for the schoot

GOING CONCERN

After making appropiate enquiries, the board of trustees-has-a reasonable expectation that the-academy trust
has adequate resources t6 continue in operahonal existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparlng the financial statements. Further details regarding the_
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee) -

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bellevue Place Educauon Trust reported an undellymg revenue operating surplus for the year ending a1 August
12018 of £46,236. - o

The majority of the income' came from the Departrnent for Education (DfE) as recurrent grants for particular
purposes. These grants and the associated expendltuae are shown as restrlcted funds in the Statement of

Financial Activities.

The trust has maintained a strong fi nancra! position over this financial penod with the seven schools carry '
forward, along with the central Trust budget, ensuring that the trust is in a good financial position. While it is not
- as high as In the previous year, the focus contlnues to be on mvestmg in the pupils in school.

Key Financial Performance lndrcators
The board monitors the following key. financiai performanee indicators for the schools’ |t maintains. These

~ following three indicators are reported at every BPET Finance Audit & Risk Commiltée:

« . no school goes into an overall deficit (after any carry forward reserves are taken into account)
" This indicator drives good stewardship of Trust funds.
Three schools have gone into an overall deficit at the end of 2017/18. For Watlmg Park School frustees
appnoved a long-term deficit; Watling Park was a challenging school from the outset and trustees were
keen to ensure that educational provision was not compromised. A deficit reductlon plan has been
approved and is ahead of schedule at the end of this fi nancnal yeat,

Kllburn Grange School and Halfey House School had tight budgets in 2017/18 and two areas of income
were not achieved that meant the school went into a deficit. A deficit reduction plan also has been
approved and and the schools are working towards a surplus budget. .

; staffing is no greater than 75% of the total income for each school This indlcator drives
sustainable budget setting by Trust schools.
All schools achleved this, being at or be!ow 75%, with the Trust average in 2017/18 bemg 73% staffi ng

spend to total income.
+ . 90%+* of invoices to have a purchase order raised ‘
This.is an aspirational target for all schools to use commitment accountmg, as required by the Academies

Financial Handbook. No school achieved this target and the average across the Trust was 65%, up from
45% in 2016/17. We contmue to aim for all purchases to have a purchase order raised at the point of

purchase

RESERVES POLICY

Bellevue Place Education Trust's schools have remainhed popular and income has grown year on year, as the
school grow to capacity. _ ‘

The trust has implemented a Reserves Policy where each school budgets 0.5% of its income to be set aside as
* a Reserve. This funding is then returned into the school’s budget at the end of the financial year, ready for the
process to repeat itself in the next financial year. This policy has allowed for a Reserve of £18.5k across the -
trust in 2017/18 and will grow in line with the turnover of the trust in future years. On reviewing the reserve
figure in 2017/18, trustees have ‘agreed to increase the reserve in 2018/19 to 1%.of each school's income and .

will continue to ba reviewed annually.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contmued) -
- FOR THE YEAR.ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

INVESTMENT POLICY

The’ Investment Policy for the trust sets out agreed areas of low- risk investments to be considered in order to
potentially generate a small income for the trust.

This policy for investment will cover r all of the following criteria:

1. We are risk adverse to preserve the principal sum.
2, We forecast cash on a short and long term basis to identify level of funds avarlable for investment.
3. We ensure that sufficient funds.are available to deal with day to day requirements and that a contmgency

of £600K is built in before funds are placed for more than one,month.
4. - We identify a range of instruments which can be invested in. .
5 We restrict investment to sterling based products and allow no foreign exchange risks. .

The responsibility for the identification and placement within the policy lies with the Head of Finance who in turn,
~must gain approval from trustees before any investment can be made.

No investments have been made in thls financial year and any mvestment proposals wrll be reported at board -
level, ahead of belng made. :

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCE_RTAINTIES
The board review the Risk Register-fo‘r the trust annually, under the following headlngs: '

Demand & Viability ‘
Insufficient pupil numbers in the schools could leave the Trust's services unsustalnabte Currently, across the

seven schools, 88% of the available spaces are taken

A}

The schools that are not full have continued to have a strong focus on marketing, with two schools havtng a
srgnlf cant increase in pupll numbers for September 2018, being close to capacity for the first time.

The impact of the strong OfSTED inspection outcomes will have a positive lmpact on all the school in terms of
parental confidence in choosing what are still all new schools. Word of mouth is also strong and in the parental
survey completed in May 201 8, 93% of existing parents would recommend the school to their friends..

The sevetity of this risk remains high, especrally as the demand for places in London has dropped

Teacher Recruitment & Retention '
The schools are operating in a competitive recruitment market across London, where teacher vacancies are .

high and the cost of living is extremely high. -

Schools are increasingly turning to train more teaching staff from within their existing teams or working with
local teaching schools or School Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT) centres. Schaols in our more
deprived areas do find teacher recruitment harder. Our experience has enabled us to be more effective and in
this year, just 7% of teachers were not considered to be good or better, which is an improvement from 10% last
year. We also work with Teach Frrst thh one recruit thrs year working well and four recruits starting in

September 2018.

" Operational (Inc. Finance).
There are a number of risks in this area. In ﬁnance the main one being that the schoolsftrust budget wrll go into

deficit, with insufficient budget momtormg not allowing Heads and the Chief Executive to monltor budgets
effectively. .
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" BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee) .

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

This has been mmgated through working closely with the budget holders (Heads) and managing the finances
effectnveiy, with regular reporting and high quahty management information.

As a new trust, our asset management plans are at an early stage and this is a focus in the BPET 3 Year
Strateglc Plan. The newly appointed Chief Operating Officer will be focussing on this in the future, though with
all schools being built or refurbished within the past three years, this has not been an urgent priority.

In HR, the risks are around setting policies and procedures to attract High quality staff, with the stability of a
small team a key focus. The trust's Recruitment & Retention Policy has had some impact in this area. :

For ICT, the risk is about security of pupil data, especially with the introduction of GDPR in May 2018. This has
been implemented well across the trust, with awareness of staff key to protecting our data subjects and the -
. information we hold on them. Havmg a strong MIS system across all schools has been very umpor(ant to deliver -

the requirements.

Growth
The trustees have contmued a penod of consolldatlon and the trust has not grown for three years, Thls penod

has been very successfully used, with alf schools judged by OfSTED as Good or better.

Our plans is to grow to 15 schools, across the areas we currently operate and we are interested to work with
schools that are as passionate as we are about a broad and balanced educational offer.

Governance
The trustees are highly expetienced professuonals and mclude the foundlng members’ companies (two trustees

from each), who are associate education professionals, both in terms of teachmg and leadership practitioners, .
Inspectors and school improvement specialists. Three frustees who joined in October 2016 have added more
expertise in finance and risk, strategic governance, and PR/marketing. Two further parent trustees have _

enhanced our finance and marketing depth to the BPET Board.

Board governance risks are around the lack of detalled information to make effective decisions and the
- independences of the board to ensure sound strategic directions are taken. . :

The structure of the board . has evolved from-a small, dynamic, entrepreneurlal focus required to drive the
establishment of a new trust, to a mature, effective group, that has depth and capacity to support and dr(ve a

" highly effective organisation.

The board papers remain cdfnprehensive, with detailed reports for eaéh agenda items, esbecially with
performance reports for each schools, sefting out the Key Performance Indicators (KPis} for school
performance, finance reports, buildings reports and an overarching Chief Executive’s report.

A great deal of work has gone into securing outstanding governance across the trust. Communléatlon between
" the- Local Governing Bodies and board has also improved, with a termly report from the board to the Local .

- Governing Bodies.

Educational Standards '
. A key risk is if the standards of a school mamtamed by the trust are below (arget or nahonal expectations, with

poor leadership and lessons not being delivered by effective teachers. In time, this could result in educational
standards being judged by OfSTED as failing (Special Measure or Significant Weaknesses). To mitigate this
risk, trustees have adopted the BPET School Improvement Strategy for all schools, which sets out the School

Improvement Review Cycle which continues to be delivered by Bellevue Education. This provides the board,
chief executive and Local Governing Bodies with a detailed understanding of the strengths. of the schools and

also supports them in areas for improvement,

With strong Ieadership teams in place, all schools are performing well, driven by high quality teachers in all
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. TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

schools At the end of 2017718, all teachers who were staylng within the trust, were judged as Good or better
With this continued performance, the schools will contmue to go from strength to strength .

Fundralsmg i
The vast majority of the income to Bellovue Place Edugation Trust come-from the Department for Education for

. running of state funded, independent schools

Income is also generated through the lelting of vacant space in olr new schools, before they fill to capacity. -
" This income goes Into the BPET Enrichment Fund and funds staff development and pupil enrichment
opportunities. . Examples of this envichment for all BPET schools is through Thinking Schools training, an
shhanced maths programme, emerging leaders tramlng and trust wide sports competntuons ‘

Plans for future periods

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The trustees continue to monitor the BPET 3 Year Strategic Plah 2016-2019. This plan is structured into seven
areas and sets out the trust's priorities for development, to ensure the support is provided to the seven schools
and sets overarching targets in areas like attainment and pupil attendance within a realistic delivery programme. -
The Regional Schools Commissioner praised the plan for a conciseness and clarity of setting out the strategic

objectnves of the trust and how they will be achieved.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN.

No assets or fundé aré held as custodian on behalf of ptheré.
DISCLQSURE'OF INFORMA?ION T0 AUDITOR

Insofar as the Trustees are aware: _
. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of
any relevant audit lnformahon and to establish that the chantable company's audltor is aware of that

’mformatlon

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, wés'app'roved by order of the Board of Trustess, as the
company directors, on [RTTW) \3 and signed on its behalf by: .

me

Claire Delaney 4 ' o . .
Chalr of Trustees - . - . . !
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee) -

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that. Bellevue Place Education Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system Is designed
to manage rather than -eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.. '

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executlve as Accountmg Officer,

for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both proprrety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsrbrlrtres assigned. to it in the funding agreement between
Bellevue Place Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 4

) GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that descnbed in the Trustees' report and in the
. Statement .of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board: of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year
~ Attehdance during the year at meetlngs of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetmgs attended Out of a possible
Claire Delaney, Chair : _ 4 4 ’
-Mark Malley o .4 4
- Simon Rule - 4 4
_Steven Wade, Vice Chair 1 4
Vicky Griffiths 1 4
. Katie Lee 4 4
David Thomas 2 4
Dina Choudhury 1 2
0 2 -

Chris Gallant

The board currently comprises of nine trustees. The members and trustees decrded to appoint two parent ‘
trustees to the BPET Board, who Joined in December 2017 .

The trustees are very happy with-the level.of data and information provrded at the Board meetrngs to help
inform strategic dlrectron and decisions taken by the Board.

Governance review
The mternal dovernance review in 2017/18 looked at lwo areas of governance within the trust

1. Locai governance level - taking forward the actions from the 2016i17 external governance review,
conducted by the National Governance Assoclation (NGA) which recommended a change to-the local

" governance structure across the. schools.

2. Board governance level — expandrng the membership of the Board to nine trustees with the addition of
two parent trustees and the addition of a second Board committee ~ Remuneration Committee - to review

and approve the BPET Pay Policy and proposed executive salary rewards.

Local governance changes have been one of the three key strategic changes for BPET in thls academic year,
with a wide consuitation of governors staff and parents to the plans being considerad by the BPET Board.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANGE STATEMENT {continued)

The external review report recommended “work with staff and LGB members to reach a new settlement for .
school;!evel governance within BPET", . This report sets out the detail of a move to Local Advisory Boards,
replacihg Local Governing Bodies, The main purpose of lhe.néw Local Advisory Boards will be:

. to' maintain an overview of the educational attainment and achievement of the academy,
. to advise on the School Development Plan proposals,
I assist the academy in meeting the needs of the local community it serves.

At the Board meeting on 12 December 201 7, the' Board approved an outhne proposal to be consulted on with
key stakeholders. These included governors, staff and parents who were all invited to respond to the proposal
between 28 February 2018 to 6 April 2018, The consultation draft of the proposals set out to remove duplication
of effort in the local governance structure and central executive team; and to clarify roles and responsibllities
throughout the govemance structure. The main proposal was to disband the existing Local Governing Bodjes
(LGBs) for each school and to leplace them with Local Advisory Boards (LABs)

The consultation exercise revealed broad support for the objectives of the proposal, 76 detailed comments froim
the meetings and written submissions. From these responses, hine changes were made to the proposal which
was approved by ‘the BPET Board on 1 May 2018.

Over the Summer term 2018, the central team |mplemented transition plans to action the following:
. The effective date for disbanding the Local Governing Bodies and creating Local Advisary Boards in thelr

‘ place will be 1 September 2018,
. The first meetings of the new Local Advisory Boards will ba called during September or October 2018,

. In accordance with the principle of flexibility and local. autonomy, LABs will then decide their own business
. arrangements as set out in the Terms of Reference.
. The trustees will confirm the appointment of Chairs for the new Local Advisory Boards at the trust Board .

meeting on 11-July 2018. All sitting members of existing Local Governing Bodies will be invited to
become a founder member of the Local Advisory Board; sitting members may choose whether or not to

accept the invitation. _
+ - Any silting member who accepts the invitation will be offered.a term of office that coincides with the

unexpired portion of their current four-year term office.

In terms of the Board governance changes in 2017/18, they were two fold. Firstly, the decision to appolint two
parent trustees, from the elected parent governors enabled the BPET Board to have an additional perspective

for the dectsmns taken by the Board.

‘ lt is also a requirement of the Art«cles of Association that if the governance structure does not have Local
Governing Bodies (as was the intention of the BPET Board), the Board must have elected parental

. representation.

The second change of the Board governance structure was to introduce a second Committee to the Board. In
line with good practice and responding to the high profile of MAT CEO's salaries, the BPET Board approved.the
proposal-fo have a Remunaration Committee and four trustees have been appolinted to this new committee.
Terms of reference has been approved for this new commlttee which has its first inaugural meeting Iin

September 2018,

The Finance, Audit & Risk Committee is a sub- committee of the main board of trustees. The purpose of the
Committee is to assist the decision making of the board, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to-
the best means of fulfilling the boards responsibility to ensure sound management of the schools’ finances and
resources, ‘including proper planning, budgeting, budget monitoring and probity. They will take particular
cognisance of all risk and mitigation factors associated with the finances of the trust. . '

The Committee also provides a process for independent checking of financial controls, systems, transactions
and risks across the work of the trust and its schools. The Committee reviews internal financial controls at the
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. GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

trust and agrees a programme of work that will address these in order to mform the governance statement in
these accounts and accept the report from the external audrtors

Al major issues will be referred to the full board for ratification. The Finance, Audit & Risk Commlttee is the
- 'Dedicated Audit Committee’ required by ESFA in the Academies FInancral Handbook for trusts wrth an annual

income over £50m.

- During the year Dina Choudbury. who is a qualrﬁed accountant, joined the Commrttee Attendance at meetmgs
in the year was as folrows :

Attendance at meetrngs in the year was as follows;

Trustee . = - - Mestings attended Out of a possible

‘Mark Malley 2. 3

Simon Rule 3 3

David Thomas (Chair) 2 3 -
Vicky Griffiths 2 3

Dina Choudhury 0. 1

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Off icer, the Chief Executive has responsrbrllty for ensurmg that the Academy Trust delivers good
value In the use of public resources. The Accountrng Officer understands-that value for money refers to the

educational and wider societal autcomes achreved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the _Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports.to the Board .of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy

Trust has delivered improved value for money durrng the year by:

. The fmance,team continues to iook at spend across the schools and Identified where good practice is
oceurring, celebrating this and reducing area of high spend which is not consistent in similar schools.

. Pupil Premium funding has been allocated to optimum effect, that was a focus for the School
Improvement Review Cycle, ensuring. plans for each school were robust, supported pupil premium
children to close the gap, stretched the most-able pupil premium children and was published on the

- school web sites,

- «. ° The tiust continues to workwrth its preferred procurement partner — School's Buymg Club (SBC) ~

* carry out all medium and large scale purchases. As experts, they gain the best value for money for all

- large contracts and making use of the economies of scale across seven schools None-of these

contracts required tendering within this fmanclal year.
THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of *
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The systern of intemal control is based on.an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise. the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and econamically. The system of internal control has been in place in Bellevue Place Education Trust
for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up ta the date of approval of the anhnual report and

financial statements.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued) L ' L

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed. the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongomg process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks, that has been'in place for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and
-up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly lewewed by

the Board of Trustees

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of mtemal financial control is based on'a framework of regular management
.information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegatlon and
accountability. In particular, it mcludes , )

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

- " which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees; .
-e- regular reviews by the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties; .

ldent:ﬁcanon and management of nsks

o o o o

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a speclﬂc internal audit functlon and has decided to appoint
Moore Stephens LLP as intemal auditor. - :

The internal-auditor's rofe includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Acadeimy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in.the current perlod included:
+ . Management of risks,.fraud, theft and lrregulanty
Financial planning and budget monitoring; '
Procurement (including contracts and high value expendltures)
Receipt of income and reporting;
Banking and reconciliations;
- Payroll, personnel procedures and staff expenses; and

Confhcts of mterest and connected parties.

‘Onan annual basis the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the audlt commlttee on the operation
- of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. :
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS ‘

As Accountmg Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewirg the effectiveness of the system of~ .

. internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by

° the work of the internal auditor;”

° the work of the external auditor;

° the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

° the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responslbllity for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework. . ’

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

~ control by the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous

improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on v\ and signed on their beha(f,‘by:

Claire Delaney A ‘ Mark Greatrex
Chair of Trustees - Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE -

As Accounting Officer of Bellevue Place Education Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
- impropriety and non-compllance with terms and conditions of alf funding received by the academy trust, under

the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

| confirm that I and the académy trust Board of Truslees are able fo identify any material lrregulér or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under

the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I'confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of

' ~ Trustees and ESFA.

Mark Greatrex
" Accounting Officer
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BELLEVUE PLAGE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee) -

- STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trustees (who act as Governors of Bellevué Place Education Trust and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and
the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice) and applicable taw and regulatlons )

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under company law
. the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its Incommg resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditurs, for that penod in preparing these financial statements, the

Trustees are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academles Accounts Dlrectlon
. 2017 to 2018; .

® make judgments and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been- followed subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained In the fmanciai statements;

prepare the financial statements on the goung concern basis unless it is Inappropnate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in busmess : 4

©.

The. Trustees are responsnble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with-the Companies
"Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. . .

The Trustees are responsible for ensiring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants recelved from ESFA/DfE have heen applied for

the purposes intended.

The Trustess are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatron and
. dlssemlnatuon of financial statements may differ from leglslation in other jurisdictions. _

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on '\'L\\’» \ 1§ and s19ned onits. behalf by

u{ / Q/kuuuw\/\

Clalre Delariey
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
"BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Bellevue Place Education Trust (the 'Academy Trust'). for the year
ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating -income and
expenditure account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to

2018 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency. :

In our opinion the finanqial statements:

) give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year-then
ended,; , o o _

-« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and . . -

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008,. the Charities
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education & SkKills -
Funding Agency. :

BASIS FOR OPINION

* We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
" law.. OUr responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent’of the Academy Trust in accordance with

‘the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit. of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
Including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian., ) .

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

~

We have nothihg to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) réquire us to
report to you where: , , - : 7
e the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
Is not a@ppropriate; or . , ’ :
e the Trustees have not disclosed In.the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may .
. cast significant doubt about the Academy. Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are

authorised for issue. :

OTHER INFORMATION

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information -
included in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except fo the extent otherwise explicitly -
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF '
BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST : :

In connection with our audlt of the financial statements our responslbility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the. financial statements or our
‘ knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify ‘such material’
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there Is a material’
misstatement In the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other Information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal mrsstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact
. We have nothrng to report in this regard

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

° the information given in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

° the Trustees report and the Strateglc report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
_requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REGUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its envionment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report Including the Strategrc

report.

: We have nothing to report in respect of the foHowmg matters in relatron to which the Compames Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

LI adequate accounting records have: not been kept, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or ‘
° the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
° certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by_ law are hot made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. ’

" RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' respansibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for theé purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the -
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the Trustees are responsrble for assessing the Academy Trusts abrllty to‘
continue as a.going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either Intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do S0.
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BELLEVUE PLAGE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain. reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
. from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to.issue an Auditor's repoit that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materlal If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

A further description of our]esponstbllmes for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial ‘
Reporting Council's website at: wwwfrc org. uk/audxtorsresponsnb|ht«es Th|s descuptaon forms part of our

-Auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 -
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's -
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and |ts members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. .

Rakesh Shaunak FCA (Senior statutory éuditor)
for and on behalf of ‘

MHA Macintyre Hudson

“Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

New Bridge Street House
30-34 New Bridge Street
London

EC4V 6BJ

Date: (& DLHctE
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" BELLEVUE PLACE E,DUCATION TRUST
- (A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BELLEVUE
PLAGE. EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY - :

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 4 August 2017 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018,
. 'we have cairied out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and

income received by Bellevue Place Education Trust during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities

which govemn them. '

This report is made solely to Bellevue Place Educatlon Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our-
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Bellevue Place Education Trust
and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume.responsibility to anyone other than Bellevue Place Education
. Trust and the ESFA, for our work for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. '

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER
AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT .

The Accounting Officer'is responsiblé, under the requirements’ of Bellevue Place Education Trust's funding
. agreement with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies. Financial Handbook extant from 1

September 2017, for énsuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financia! transactrons conform to the authorities whrch govern them _

Our resp'on$sb|ht|es for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical -
guidance and-are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts: Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactionis do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

" APPROAGH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. .

The objecnve of a Ilmlted assurance-engagement is to perform such plocedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negatlve concluswn on

regularity.

" A limited assurance engagement is more limited in écope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that -
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement Includes examlnation on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propriety of '
the Academy Trust's income and expendltu re. .

The work undertaken to draw to our conc|u3|on includes:

e Reviewing the mlnutes of the meetings of the Govemmg Body and other ewdence made avallable to us
relevant to our consideration of regularity. . .

. "Review of the quectlves and activities of the Acaderhy, with reference to the income streams and other
information available to us as auditors of the Academy. : :
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST .. .
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BELLEVUE
PLACE EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

. Tesfting ofa_sa'mple'bf payroll péymen‘ts to staff.

«  Testing of a s'émp!e of payments to suppllers and other third parties.
o _Testmg of a sample of grants recelved and other income streams
. Evaluating the mternal control procedures and repotting Imes and testing as appropraate and makmg

- appropnate enqumes of the Accounting Ofﬂcer

CONCLUSION ,

’

" Ih the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
“expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not -
“ been applied to purposes intended: by Parliament and the financial tr ansacttons do not conform to the authorities

. which govern them.

- MHA Maclntyre Hudson

" Chartered Accou‘ntants oo
_ Statutory Auditors R

New Bridge Street House

30-34 New Bndge Street’
London . : ' : - ' o ,
EC4V 6BJ : ' : -

Date;, (X DEC 4
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company, limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 - ‘ o

Restricted - Restricted

Un'restricted general fixed asset - - Total 4 Total
funds funds - funds * funds funds
2018 . 2018 2018 2018 2017
) Note £ £ £ . £~ S
* INCOME FROM: ' _ .
Donations and capital grants 2 71,309 - 1,662,777 1,734,086 . 5,582,384
~ “Charitable activities 3 3,361 8,458,007 . 8,461,368 6,279,208
Other trading activities 4 290,697 . - 290,597 196,480
[nvestments | 5 : 625 - A - ) 625 915
TOTAL INCOME . 365,892 8,458,007 1,662,777 10,486,676 12,058,987
EXPENDITUREON: 5 .
Raising funds 68,123 - - 68,123 23,637
Charitable activities ' ) ¢ 297,458 8,804,082 909,973 10,011,613 7,259,516
TOTAL EXPENDITURE B 365,581 8,804,082 809,973 10,079,636 7,283,053
NET INCOME / '
(EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER RECOGNISED - . : -
GAINS AND LOSSES 311 (346,075) 752,804 407,040 4,775,934
Gains on revaluations of fixed ‘ :
assets : 14 - - 5,236,584 5,236,584 -
-Actuarial gains on defined - : : : o o :
- benefit pension schemes 21 ' - 267,000 - 257,000 82,000
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 311 | (89,075) 589,388 5,900,624 4,857,034
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS: | ‘ S
Total funds brought forward . , . 2,875 (360,877) 22,204,935 . 21,846,933 16,988,998
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED . 3,188 {449,952) 28,194,323 27,747,657 21,846,933
FORWARD : : : . :

The notes on p'ages A3A2 to 56 form part'of these financial statements.

’
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07956784

BALANCE SHEET

. AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

B " Note

FIXED ASSETS .

Tangible assets _ 14
CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors A ' 15
Cash at bank and'in hand '

CREDITORS: amounts fallmg due within
one year 16

NET CURRENT ASSETS

. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LAIABILITIESA
Defined benefit pension scheme liability A21

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITIES

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted income funds:
'Restricted income funds : 17
. Restricted fixed asset funds - 17

. Restricted income funds excfudmg pension
liability

Pens;on reserve

Total restricted income funds

Unrestricted income funds ~ ~ 17

TOTAL FUNDS

1,216,779
594,106

1,810,885

(1,472,694)

162,048

28,194,323

28,346,371 .
(602,000)

2018
£ £
- 28,011,366
1,661,025
657,517
2,208,542

(2,051,862)

338,191
28,349,557
(602,000}
27,747,557

108,123

22,204,935

22,311,058

‘ . (467,000}

27,744,371

3,186

27,747,857

2017

22,167,253

166,680

22,313,933

(467,000)

- 21,846,933

21,844,058
2,875

21,846,933

The financial statements on pages 29 to 56 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on \'),\n,\ ¥

and are sngned on their behalf, by:

Claire Delaney '
Chair of Trustees

The hotes on pages 32 to 56 form part qf these financial statements,
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BELLEVUE PLAGE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

_ Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities o .. 18

Cash flows from investing activities:
“Investment income - '

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE Group .
- Net cash provided by investing acﬁvitl_es

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
'Cash and cash equivalents brought forward )

Cash and cash.equlvalents carried forward’ S 19

The notgé on pages 32 to 56 form part of these financial statements. .

* Note

2017

594,106 |

2018
£ £
(1,150,108) 36,680
.- 625 915
(576,705) (5,532,533)
1,662,777 5,553,738
1,086,697 22,120
T (63,411) 58,800
657,517 598,717
657,517
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- BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1..  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied oonéistently,,
except where noted) judgr‘nents and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. -

Basis- of preparatlon of fmanclal statements

. The ffnanCIal statements of the academy trust, Wthh is a public benefit enttty under FRS 1 02 have

~ Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts-in - - -

1.2

‘been prepared under the historical cost convention ‘in accordance with the Financial Repomng

Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Dxrechon 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA,
the Charmes Act 2011 and the Companies Act 20086. - :

Bellevue Place Educatjon Trust constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.

Going concern : :
The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie. whether there are any

".material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to -
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements . ,
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST

(A. cdmpany limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ ' . __
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 o Y

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.3 Income .

All income is recognised once the Academy Trust has entitlement to the income, it is ptobéble that

 the income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

: Grants are mcluded in the Statement of financial activities mcorporatmg income and expenditure

account on a receivable: basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not

~expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as

deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued

. -General Annual Grant -is recogmsed in full in the Statement of financial activities lncorporattng
income and expenditure-account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect

of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

\

Cép)ta‘l grants are recognised when there is entitlernent and are not deferred over the. life of the

" asset on-which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reﬂected in the balance in
the restricted fixed asset fund. -

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in-

the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account in the pertod In
which it is receivable, where receipt is probable and it is measurable. :

Donattons are recogmsed on a receivable basis where receipt Is probable and the amount can be

reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facllities, Is recognised in the period in which it is recelvable and
to the extent the goods have been provided or on comptetton of the service.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
- .(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIA]. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1, ACCOUNTlNG POLICIES (continued)

1 4 Expendlture

1.5

,Expendlture is recognised’once there is a legal or constructtve obllgatxon to transfer economic

benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer- of economic beneflits will be required in -

“settlement and the amount of.the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by

activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs Involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than oné activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent and depreclatlon charges allocated on the portlon of the asset's use.

Expenditure on ransmg funds includes all expendlture incurred by the Academy Trust to raise. funds.
for its charitable purposes and mcludes costs of aII fundraising activities events and non-charitable

trading.

"Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational

operations, including support costs and those costs relating to the govemance of the Academy Trust

" appointed to charitable activities.

Al expenditure is inclusive of irrecoVerable VAT.

Tanglble flxed assets and depreciation

. All assets costmg more than £5, 000 are capltahsed and are carried at cost, net of deprecuatlon and
any provision for impairment. _ )

Where tangible fixed. assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government .or from the private sector, they are .included in the Balance ‘sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requinng the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income
and- expenditure account from the month of acqusition. Where. tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, qeprematuc_)n onh such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Deprecuatloh is. provided on all tangible fixed assefs other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of these assets, less thelr estlmated residual value over their expected useful lives

on the fol!owmg bases:

Freehold property . - . 50 years straight line_

Furniture and fixtures : - 10 years straight line
Computer equipment © - 3yearsstraight line
Intangible assets (software) - - 3years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the cairying value of any fiXed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying .
value of:fixed assets ‘and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. (mpairment
losses are recogmsed in the Statement of fi nanc;al activities lncorporatmg income and expendrture

account.
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- BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company Ilmlted by guarantee)

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 -

1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

16

17

’Débtdrs
Trade and other debtors are recoghised at the settlement amount after any trade d:sccunt offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepald net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at Bank and in hand

" Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short

1.8

maturity of three months or. Iess from the date of. acqulsltlon or opening of the deposit-or similar
account.

Liabhilities and provrsions

Liabilities and provnswns are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
and the amount of the settiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as
advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the hest

" estimate of the amounts requlred to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of

money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the
pre-~tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwmdmg of the discount ijs

recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Financial instruments

The Acadéemy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust ahd their measurement basis are as follows:”

Financial assefs - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounis due fo the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any -
impairment. Cash at bankis classified as a basic ﬂnanc;al mstrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabifities - trade credltors, accruals and other credltors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised costs as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services

-rather than cash or another financial instruments. Amounts due to the Academy Trust's ‘wholly
-owned sub31d|ary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.10 Taxat|on

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Fmance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets: the definition of a charitable company for UK . corporation tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or

" capital gains received within categoties covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act

2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or
gains are apphed exclusively to charitable-purposes.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUGATION TRUST
" (A company limited by guarantee)

. NOTES TO.THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. AGCOUNTING POLICIES (contiriued)

~ 1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme (“LGPS") These are deﬂned benefit

schemes

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to.spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage oficurrent and future pensionable payroll. The contributions aie
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospeCtIVe
unit credit method. As stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defi ned benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as
a defined contribution scheme for accountmg purposes and the contributions recognised in the

period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a‘funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
_ liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to.the current rate-of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. -
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset Is also tecognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expenditure account and comprises the Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest
- income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
_beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between
the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised

in other recognised gains and losses.

- Actuarial gains and losses are recogmsed Immedlately in other recogmsed gams and losses.

P 12 Fund accountmg

Unrestncted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the chantabie Ob]eCtS of the Academy Trust-at the discretion of the Trustees. ‘

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources thch are to be applied to specific capital pufposes‘ ’
imposed by funders where the asset acquired ar created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted genera! funds comprlse all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the -
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Educatlon Group
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST"
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACGCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.13 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other -
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the -

circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes -estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting

accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
. . The estimates and assumptions that have a significant tisk of causing a material adjiistment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. .

The piesent value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends.on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost {(income) for pensions include thé discount rate. Any
changes in-these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability, Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures deiived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial vafuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension.

liability. '

2, INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS )
Restricted  Restricted

Unrestricted general fixed asset o - Total Total
funds, funds " funds funds funds. -

. 2018 2018 2018 2018 . 2017

S £ £ £ - £ £
Donations S, © 74,309 - - S 71,309 28,646
Grants o - . 1,662,777 1,662,777  55563,738 .
71,309 - 1,662,777 1,734,086 ‘5,582,384

Total 2017 28646 . - 5553738 5,582,384
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST - -
(A company limited by guarantee)

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

3. FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS -

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Start up grant )
Pupil premium -~ -
Other DfE/ESFA grants -

Othér govemmeht grants

Local authorlty grants
Other government grants

. Other income

Trip income
Otherincome .

Total 2017
‘4. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Lettings
- .Otherincome

Total 2017

S Restricted : . :
" Unrestricted general Total * Total
funds funds funds funds
" 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ . £ £ £
. 66941185 6,694,185 4,916,861
. 410,250 410,250 505,960 -
. 324,778 . 324,778 211,897
- 116,990 - - 116,990 48,212
- 7,546,203 7,546,203 5,682,930
- 162,054 162,054 108,276
- 681,220 681,220 449,673
- 843,274 843,274 557,949
- 68,530 68,530 31,593
3,361 - 3,361 6,736
3,361 68,530 71,891 38,329
3,361 8,458,007 8,461,368 6,279,208
6,736 6,272,472 6,279,208
Restricted
Unrestricted general Total Total
funds funds funds funds -
2018 2018 2018 2017
B - £ £ £
156,007 . " 156,007 139,838
134,590 - 134,590 56,642
290,597 . 290,597 196,480
. -/
196,480 - 196,480
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
{A company.limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

5,

INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest receivable

-

Total 2017

. EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on fundraising
‘trading ’
Direct costs
Support costs

- Educational Operations:

Direct costs
Support costs

Total 2017

Restricted .
Unrestricted general Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
625 . 625 915
© 015 - 915 -
Staff costs Premisesl Other costs Total Total
2018 . 2018 T 2018 2018 2017 -
£ ' £ £ £ £
- - 68,423 - 68,123 . 23,5637
5,126,803 4497766 1,547,192 7,123,761 5,274,406
1,346,753 324,139 1,216,860  2,887,752° 1,985,110
6,473,556 773,005 2,832,175 10,079,636 7,283,053
4,718,736 1,079,086 1,485,231 7,283,053

In 2017, of the total expenditure of £7,283,053, £245,724 was from unrestricted funds,
from restricted general funds and £513,854 was from restricted fixed asset funds.

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

'Educational Operations

Total 2017

‘Activities

£6,523,475 was

E..

undertaken - Support
directly costs Total Total
g 2018 2018 2018 2017
/ £ £ } £
7,123,761 2,887,752 10,011,513 7,259,516
5,274406 1,985,110 © 7,259,516
S j—————— ]
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST -
(A company limited by guarantee)

- -NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: FOFE THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

8.  SUPPORT GOSTS

Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs
Other support costs
Wages and salaries
Depreciation

Total 2017

‘9,  NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
This is stated after charging:

' Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the charity
Auditor's remuneration - audit

Fundraising Educationél Total Total
'~ expenses Operations 2018 2017
£ B O £

A - 92,680 92,680 - 123,204

: - 229130, 229,130 213,505
68,123 256,016 324,139 242,061
. - 49,652 49,652 38,207

- 12,548, 12,548 . -

- 1,337,753 1,337,753 870,726

- 909,973 909,973 513,854
68,123 2,887,762  2,955875 . 2,001,647

23,537 1,085,110 2,008,647

2018 2017

N <0
909,974 513,854
10,000 8,750
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" BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

10.

STAFF COSTS
Staff costs ‘
Staff costs were as follows: -
| 2018 2017
. - £ . £
Wages and salaries © . 4750762 = 3,548,008
Social security costs , . o ‘ 440,649 ’ 346,698 -
Operatmg costs of defined benefit penslon schemes ‘ 1,016,756 - 651,354
| 6,208,167 4,546,060
Agency staff costs 256,389 - 165,676
Pensjon scheme ﬂnanqe cost 9,000 . - 7,000
' 6,473,556 4,718,736
Staff numbers ‘
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year‘ was as follows: ‘
2018 . 2017
- . ) No. © No.
Teachers ' - R : .. 67 - , 58
Administration and support ’ : S 108 - 64
Management . : .9 » - 10
184 132
! Higher paid staff _
- The number of employees whose employee beneflts {excluding emp}oyer penswn costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: .
008 2017
: , : No. ' No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 3 3
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 2 4
. In the band £80,001 - £90,000 2. - 2
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 1 0
Key management personnel

The Key Management Personnel of the Academy Trust compnse the Trustees as hsted on page 1 and
the respectlve Headteachers of each School. The total amount 6f employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions) received by Key Management Personnel for their serwces to the Academy Trust

was £950,636 (2017 - £812 615)
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST:
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

- M.

12,

13,

Total -

CENTRAL SERVICES
- The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year.

School improvement: leadership and management support

School improvement: pupil progress and achievement support .
Continuing professional development and training; building staff capacity
Professional services support as follows:

e © ¢ o

! Finance
Human Resources
Estates
IT administration.
Markerting, communications and media support
Health and safety

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

the Trust charges for these setvices on the basis of a top slice of income at 5%.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows;

. 2018 2017
. £ £
Rutherford House 70,401 64,227
Braywick Court 27,790 24,252
Whitehall Park - 61,793 52,372
Deer Park 25,768 18,632
" Kilburn Grange 46,388 30,896
‘Halley House 40,130 29,361
Watling Park 49,024 36,485 -
T 321,294 256,225

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
Dunng the year no Trustees recewed any remuneration (2017 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 201 8,.no Trustees rece:ved any rexmbursement of expenses (2017 -

AN,

TRUSTEES' AND OFFIGERS' INSURANCE

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an

- alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on

academy.business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantjfy the Trustees and

officers mdemnlty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST _
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

14. - TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2017
Additions - : -
Revaluation and reclassifications

At 31 August 2018

. Depreciation

At 1 September 2017
Charge for the year
Reclassifications

At 31 August 2018

Net book value
At 31 August 2018

At 31-August 2017

15. DEBTORS

Due within one yeai
Trade debtors

. Other debtors . _
* Prepayments and accrued income-

' 16.. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors :
* Other taxation and social security
~ Accruals and deferred income

2017 - .

£ -

© 1,472,694

Freehold - . Furniture 4 Plant and
property and fixtures  equipment Total
£ £ CE S
22,056,496 - 509,468 917,938 = 23,483,602
152,743 28,226 395736 576,705
© 5,708,524 (95418)  (294,361) . 5,319,745
. 27,918,763 441976 1,019,313 29,380,052
663,001 . 157,796 505,552 - 1,326,349
305,440 © - 188,156 © 416,378 909,974
(387,818)  (113,700) (366,118)  (867,637)
580,622 232,252 555,812 1,368,686
27,338,141 209,724 463,501 28,011,366
21393495 - 351372 412,386 22,157,253
2018 2017
- !
44,062 390,511
144,475 - ' 507,305
1,031,242 653,209
1,216,779 1,551,025
2018
B
535,402 951,240
447,104 102,233
820,008 998,389"
2,051,862
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
{AR'company limited by guarantec)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 '

16. - CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year (continued).

I_Jeferred income ‘
Deferred income at 1 September 2017

Resources deferred during the year
. Amounts released from previous years

: Deferfed' income at 31 August‘201 8

2018

2017

£ £
580,453 234,017
641,770 - 580,453
(680,453). (234,017)
644,770 580,453

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holdmg funds received in advance of the 2018/19 A

academic yeatr in respect of

¢ Funding from the ESFA for free school meals received in advance
. Funding from the ESFA in relation to capital projects . )
* Catering income received from parents in advance of the new academic year,
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

TS

* FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 '

The speciﬂc purposés for which the funds are to be applied are as. foilows

17.  STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Balance at -
1 - Balance at
September : : Gains/ 31 August
. 2017 Ihcome Expenditure (Losses) 2018
o R 4 £ £ £ . £
Unrestricted funds 4
General Funds 2,875 365,892 (365,581) - - 3,186
Restricted general funds
" Balance at .
R | Balance at
September _ . Gains/ - 31 August
© 2017 ° Income Expenditure {Losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £
General funds - 106,123 8,458,007  (8,412,082) . 1152,048
Pension reserve (467,000) “ (392,000) 257,000 (602,000)
(360,877) 8,458,007 (8,804,082) 257,000 - - (449,952)
Restriéted fixed asset funds .
" Balance at
1 : Balance at '
September : - Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure - (Losses) 2018
. | B £ £ £ . E
Net book value of fixed assets 22,204,935 1,662,777  (909,973) 5,236,584 28,194,323 .
Total restricted funds 21,844,058 10,120,784 ’ {9,714,055) 5,493,584 27,744,371
“Total of funds 21,846,933 10,486,676 [10,079,636) 5493584 27,747,557

Restncted Fixed Asset Fund represents the Trust's investment in fixed assets, net of any depreclatlon
Any unspent capﬂal grants are held in thls fund to be applied for thé purpose intended by the grantor.

_ Restrictéd general funds will be used for educational purposes in line with the Academy Trust's objects
- and-its funding agreement with the ESFA. Under the funding agreement with the Secxetary of State, the

o Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the carry forward at 31 August 2018.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018.

17.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (cdntinued)'

Restricted funds ln respect of the defmed benef t relate to the movement on the Local Government
Pension Scheme liability. :

Unrestncted funds relate to donations and other income given wnthout restr(ctlon to its purpose and can
be used for the general purposes of the Academy Trust.

.‘ANALYSIS OF AGADEMIES BY FUND BALANCE

Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were allocated as follows:

Total Total

2018 C 2017
£
Central Trust . . 58,204 22,620
Rutherford House ‘- T ‘ 85,988 12,849
Braywzck Court - ~ h : > 18,189 8,733
Whitehall Park : : 114,068 21,288 .
Deer Park 88,901 56,332
Halley House (73,015) - - 16,545
Kilburn Grange {51,517) 125
- Watling Park . (85,574) (29,494)
Total beforé fixed asset fund and pension reserve’ 155,234 108,998 '
. Restricted fixed asset fund 128,194,323 22,204,935
Pension reserve - (602,000) (467,000)
Total ‘27,747,557 21,846,933

The following académy‘is carrying a net deﬁpit onits portibn of the funds as follows:

Name of academy Amount of deficit

. £

© Kilburn House - - - ¥ 51,617
" Halley House - © 73,018
Watling Park - 85,574

' The Academy Trust is téking'the following action to return the academies to surplus:

Three schools have gone into an overall deficit at the end of 2017/18.- For Watling Park Schoo), trustees
approved a long-term deficit; Watling Park was a challenging school from the outset and trustees were
keen to ensure that educational provision was not compromised. A deficit reductlon plan’ has beén
approved and is ahead of schedule at the end of this fmanc]al year.- :

Kllburn Grange School and Halley House School had tight budgets in 2017/18 and two areas of income * -

were not achieved that meant the school went into a deficit. A deficit reduction plan also has been
approved and and the schools are working towards a surplus budget.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 - o

17.  STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY COST
Expénditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows;

Teaching
"~ and - Other costs
educational Other © excluding - 4
‘support - ‘support Educational deprecia- . Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies - tion 2018 . 2017
£ - £ e £ £ -
364,394 76,247 570,645 1,011,286 734,692

Central Trust

Rutherford House 1,170,644 . 143,152 159,163 318,824 1,791,783 - 1,576,851

" Braywick Court 426,832 35,810 199,089 124,323 686,054 599,952
. Whitehall Park 979,349 94,595 103,806 343,386 1,521,136 1,240,174
Deer Park - ' 392,601 - 25,848 27,045 376,421 821,915 517,229
Kilburn Grange 692,709. 110,726 53,878 241,310 . 1,098,623 662,901 -
Halley House | - 662,687 - 89,797 42,792 . 244,337 . 1,039,613 . 619,617
Watling Park - 781,085 103,137 105,104 209,917 1,199,253 817,883

505,917 987,459 667,124 - 2,429,163 . 9,169,663 6,769,199
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

17.  STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Unrestricted funds
General Funds

Restricted general funds.

General funds
Pension reserve .

. £ .

Restricted flxgd asgset funds

Net book value of fixed
- assets. o
Capital grants

" Total restricted funds

‘Total of funds

16,088,999 12,058,987  (7,283,053).

Balance at ‘ A Balance at
1 September , Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income . Expenditure infout - (Losses) .. 2017
- £ £ £ £ £
15,822 232,777  (245,724) - - 2,875
Balance at ‘ . Balance at
1 September . . _ Transfers - Gains/ - 31 August
2016 income Expenditure infout (Losses) - 2017
£ . £ N . £ £ £
184,672 6272472  (6,351,475) 454 . 106,123 -
(377,000) . (172,000) - . .82,000 - (467,000)
Balance at ~ Balance at
1 September . . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016° . Income = Expenditure - infout - (Losses) 2017
£ . £ ' £. £ £ £
17,150,986 - (513,854) 5,520,121 - 22,157,253
© 14,519 . 5,553,738 - - (5,620,575) - - 47682
16,973,177 - 11,826,210 - (7,037,329) . 82,000 21,844,058 -
- 82,000 - 21,846,933
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

S\
A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 ‘

. 18.
ACTIVITIES
2018 2017
4 , £ £
‘Nevt income for the year {as per Statement of Financial Actiyitie§) . 407,040 | 4’?75'934
" Adjustment for: ' ) :
Depreciation.charges 909,974 513,854
‘Investment income (625) (915)
Adjustment on dlsposal and levaluatuon of fixed assets (950,798) 12,412
Decreasel(increase) in debtors 334,579 (337,311)
{Decrease)/increase in creditors ) {579,501) 454 444
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income’ (1,862,777) (5,553,738)
Defined benefit pension scheme cast less contributions payable 383,000 165,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 9,000 7,000
Net cash (used in)/provided hy operating activities - " (1,150,108) . .36,680 .
“19.  ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
' 2018 2017
I : £
Cash in hand 594,106 657,517
Total 594,106 657,517
20.  ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS |
: Restricted  Restricted o
. Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018
£ £ , £
Tangible fixed assets: s 28,011,366 28,011,366
Current assels 3,186 182,957 1,810,885
Creditors due within one year - T (1,472,694)
* Provisians for liabilities and charges - - 1(602,000)
3,186 28,194,323 27,747,557

RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
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BELLEVUE PLACEEDUGATION TRUST

(A company limited by gual:antee)

'NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

20. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Restricted . Total

" Unrestricted = Restricted
funds . -~ general fixed asset funds .
funds funds

2017 2017 2017 . 2017

£ £ , £ £

- Co- 22,157,263 22,157,253

2,875 2,158,817 47,682 2,209,374
- (2,052,694) SRS (2,052,694)

- " (467,000) - {467,000)

2,875

' (360,877)

22,204,935 21,846,933 .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21,

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the .Teacher's Pension
Scheme for England and Wales (TPS) for academic and- related staff; and the Local Government
Pension’ Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the Royal County of Berkshire
Pension Fund. Both are Multi- employer defined benefit pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuatior of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 .

~March 2016.
. Contributions amounting to £2, 724 were payable fo the schemes at 31 August 201 8 {2017 - Nil) and are

included within creditors.
Teachers‘ Pe‘nsion Scheme

lntroductlon

.The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benef t scheme, governed by

the Teachers' Pensions Regulatians (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January
2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract,
although they are able to opt out. _

-The TPS'is an unfunded scheme and members contiibute on a ‘pay as you go' ‘basis — these

contrlbutions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer Retlrement and other
pension benef ts are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. .

- Valuation of the Teachers’ Pensmn Scheme

The Government Actuary, using hormal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in.accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valiations and Emgloyer Cost Cap) Directions

. 2014 published by HM Treasury. The ‘alm of the review is to specify the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations aré ‘dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design. of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March

'2012 and In accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions

2014. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 8 June 2014, The ey
elements of the valua’tlon and subsequent consuitation are:

employer contrtbuhon rates set. at’ 16.48% of pensionable "pay, including a 0.08% employer

administration charge. .
total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated ‘cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £191,500 million; and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuat(on date) of £176,600 million glvlng a notional
past service deficit of £14,900 million .

o . an employercost cap of 10.9% of pensionable. pay will be applied to future valuations

the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
‘réal earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%.-The assumed nominal rate of return’is 5.06%.

[

" The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate ofA16.4%. which was payable from September

2015. The next valuation of.the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the

.employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The employer's 'pension casls paid to TPS in.the periad amounted to £379,325 (2017 - £274,720)..
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21,

Females

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(www.teacherspensions.co.ulk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The .
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution.scheme. The
trust has_ set out above the information available on the scheme. ) .

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a _funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. .
The total contrlbution made for the year .ended 31 August 2018 was £334,000 (2017 - £271,000), of

‘which employer's contributions totalled £246,000 (2017 ~ £153,000) and employees' contributions totalled

£88,000 (2017 - £58,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.2% for employers and

| 5. 5% to 12.6% far employees.

'Parhament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
" _event of academy.closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would. be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
Prmcrpal actuanal ‘assumptions: ;

‘2018 - 2017 -
Dlscount rate for scheme Ilabllitles o 270 % - 260 %"
Rate of increase in salaries - . 3.80 % 4,20 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / mﬂatton i ©230% | ) 2.70 %
Inflation assumption (CPI) - . o 2.30 % 2.70 %
Inﬂatson assumption (RPI) } ' o : 3.30 '% 3.60 %

The current mortality assumptions include sulffi clent allowance for future lmprovements in mortallty rates.

‘The assumed life éxpectations on retnement age 65 are:

2018 ..2017

Retiring today . L

‘Males 234 . 23.0

Females .25.2 25.1

Retiring in 20-years ‘ S

Males 253 25,2
27.5 27.4

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1% o
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

" CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

* At 31 August

. 2018
~£'000

At 31 August
- 2017

. £'000
(28)

29

27

- {26)

1

- ()
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

- The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Fair value at Fairvalue at -
31 August 31 August
2018 2017
£ £
Equities . . " 346,000 193,000 .
Gilits . - “
Other bonds ' 111,000 60,000
Property ’ o , 102,000 53,000
. Cash and other liquid assets - C - 110,000 44,000
Other ) 72,000 35,000
/ . .
: : ‘ 741,000 385,000

Total market value of assets

The actual rétufn on scheme assets‘was £30,000 (2017 - £31,000).

.The amounts recognised in- the Statement of financial activities lncorporatlng income and exper‘ndature

account are as follows:

2018 2017
S S £
Current service cost i L ' (629,000) .(318,000) .
Interest income : C ’ 14,000 9,000 ..
‘Interest cost : - (23,000) (16,000)
 Total (638,000) (325,000)
" Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
| - 2018 2017 -
| | R £
Opening defined benefit obligation - 852,000 675,000
Current service cost R - ~ 629,000 318,000 .
Interest cost ’ . 23,000 16,000
- Employee contributions . o : 88,000 58,000
. Actuarial gains _ o - - (248,000) {230,000}
Beneﬂts paid . : .. (1,000) 15,000
1,343,000 852,000

Closing defined benefit obligation
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
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. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21, PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

“Movements in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets:
| ' 2018 - - 2017

£ : £

Opening fair value of scheme assets 385,000 © 298,000
Interest income 14,000 " 9,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 9,000 - (148,000)

' Employer contributions 246,000 153,000
Employee contributions 88,000 - | 68,000

" Benefits paid - {1,000) 15,000

Closmg fair value of scheme assets 741,000 - 385,000 -

22. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

" Each member of the chantable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after hefshe ceases to be a -
member, such amount as may be required, not exceedmg £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member

23. CONTROLLING PARTY
There is no ultimate controlling party.

24." COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
‘The Academy Trust.is a company fimited by gurantee and does not have share capital.
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BELLEVUE PLACE EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S \
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 ‘

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which -
Trustees have an interest, Alf transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with

-the requirements of the AFH and with- the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement

procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

To provide transparency to these transactions, further informatlon Is providéd below regarding thé

Related Party Transaction spend in 2017/18 along with how the conflict has arisen with the trust.

Bellevue Education Internatuonal Ltd — a company.in which Mark Matley is the CEO and Steven.Wade
is the Schools Director (both trustees of the trust) has an mterest '

. The trust purchased education advisory service from Bellevue Educahon International Ltd totalling
£74,436 during the period. There were no amounts outstanding at 31 August 2018.
. The contract is a three-year contract from 2016 to 2019 and was tendered through an OJEU

compliant process, advised by a procurement consultant. .
. The trust made the purchase at arms' length following a competltlve tendering exercise In

- ¢ * accordance with its financial regulations, which Mark Malley and Steven Wade neither partlcipated

in, nor influenced.

. In entering into the transactlon the trust has complled with the requurements of the Academies

. Financial Handbook 2017 and are provided at cost. “

School Business Services {SBS) — a company which holds é 35% sharehotdin.g in Place Group Ltd
and provides the following services to the trust, though this changed during this financial year. At
the end of the financial year SBS are no longer a related party and will not be recorded in future

reports

- The trust continues to have a contract with School Business Servlces to wha provide the cloud
based hosting service for the financial system (Civica) from School Business Services totalling

. £10,114 during the periad. There were nho amounts outstanding at 31 August 2018. )

. The trust made the purchase at arms’ length following a competitive tendering exercise in

. accordance with ils financlal regulations, which Simon Rule and Clalre Delaney neither parhmpated

In, fior influenced. .

. In entering into the transaction the trust has complied with the lequnements of the Academies .
Financial Handbook 2017 and are provided at cost.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) :

'SchOOIs Buying Club - acompany in which Claire Delaney and Simon Rule are founding owners (both

. trustees of the trust) has an interest:

Schools’ Buying Club provide procufement services to schools within the trust.

" The model for the company is to tender large scale items compliantly and support the trust in-

managing the contract over its lifespan and charging the successful company a percentage fee,
Therefore, there was no spend in 2017/18 as with all schools that use the Schools' Buying Club
service.

In order to be fully transparent and compllant the trust went to the market for education
procurement support, in order to maximise the trust's aggregated back office purchasing power.
The trust used an independent procurement consultant, in accordance with its financial regulations
and entered Into a contract, which Simon Rule and Claire Delaney 1 nelther pamcnpated in, nor
influenced.

8BC has rented the use of a room at Rutherford House School, set against local market rates,
which means the trust is.reporting a small income from SBC of £6,081 in 2017/18, This N
arrangement cease in June 2018, as the school is expanding into this space in 2018/19.

No contracts have been procured by SBC in 2017/18 for the trust. .

* In entering into the transaction the trust has complied with the requnrements of the Academies
- Financial Handbook 2017 and services are provided at cost.’

" The total expendlture through Related Party Transactlons In 2017/18 was £82 780 compared to 2016/17

when the equivalent cost was also £82,780.

In the spirit of openness and transparency the trust publishes further mformatlon on its website, in
addition to the information provided in this report. It sets out the current refated party contractual

- relationship and in-year spend. This can be found at: http:/iwww. bpet.co.uk/related-party-transactions/
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